
CC Minutes 02-04-14  

 

 

   City of Washington Terrace 1 

_________________________________________________ 2 

Minutes of a Regular City Council meeting 3 

Held on February 4, 2014 4 

City Hall, 5249 South 400 East, Washington Terrace City, 5 

County of Weber, State of Utah 6 

                      7 

MAYOR, COUNCIL, AND STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT AT WORK SESSION 8 
Mayor Mark C. Allen 9 

Council Member Mary Johnston- Excused 10 

Council Member Blair Brown 11 

Council Member Robert Jensen                  12 

Council Member Scott Monsen 13 

Council Member Val Shupe            14 

City Manager Tom Hanson 15 

Public Works Director Steve Harris 16 

City Recorder Amy Rodriguez 17 

Lt. Kevin Burns, Weber County Sheriff’s Office 18 

County Commissioner Matt Bell 19 

Sheriff Terry Thompson, Weber County Sheriff’s Office 20 

 21 

Others Present 22 
None   23 

 24 
 25 

1.     WORK SESSION:  Law Enforcement Services                      5:00 P.M 26 
Mayor Allen gave a brief re-cap of the attendance at the meeting held last week at the County 27 

Fairgrounds. Council Member Jensen gave a brief history on advisory group made up of cities 28 

that contract with the Sheriff’s Office. He stated that the group disbanded because many of the 29 

cities did not want to change their contract. Council Member Jensen stated that the meeting 30 

attended last week showed a remarkable difference with the cities attending and the questions 31 

asked.  Commissioner Bell stated that the tax increase is already showing on the unincorporated 32 

cities taxes.  He stated that the County budget will not change until next January.  33 

 34 

Sheriff Thompson stated that the plan was to have everyone where they need to be by July 1st, 35 

2014, with the one exception being West Haven. He stated that after speaking with the city, his 36 

belief was that West Haven would be on board this year. He stated that after further review, it 37 

was shown that he agreed that the city would have an additional year to review the contract. He 38 

stated that West Haven will have another year to get on board. He stated that he has written in 39 

contract that West Haven would be expected to be on full contract on July 1, 2015. 40 

 41 
Sheriff Thompson answered Council Member’s Brown question concerning Hooper’s fee in 42 

regards to price and population, stating that the formula is figured the same way for every city. 43 

Mayor Allen noted that Hooper’s calls for service are 4500 less than ours. Sheriff Thompson 44 



CC Minutes 02-04-14  

 

 

stated that the formula is adjusted to where it is most equitable to all the cities involved. Sheriff 45 

Thompson addressed the newspaper article and stated that the word “negotiation” was never 46 

used in regards to West Haven. Mayor Allen clarified that 7 out of 9 cities will be in compliance 47 

by July 1st. The two cities are West Haven and Un-incorporated. They are expected to be on 48 

board by July 1, 2015.  49 

 50 

Mayor Allen stated that he spoke with two Council Members from West Haven and stated that 51 

they both were very pro-Sheriff; however they are looking for better ways. He stated that he is 52 

available to help look for better ways to deal with the Sheriff contract. Sheriff Thompson stated 53 

that he is always available to listen to input. Council Member Shupe asked the Sheriff why the 54 

Office did not hold the line with the other cities as they did with us. Sheriff Thompson stated that 55 

he has tried to be equitable with all the cities, and they may all not be the same. He stated that the 56 

Office knew that some of the cities were struggling with the doubling of the contract. He stated 57 

that Farr West and Hooper had concerns with the abrupt time that they needed to have the full 58 

contract in place He stated that has tried to be equitable in dealing with the cities and 59 

Washington Terrace as well. Sheriff Thompson stated that he is still working with the cities to 60 

get them to where they need to be. He stated that he is not negotiating with the cities. He stated 61 

that he is trying to be as feasible and reasonable to get the cities to where they need to be.  62 

 63 

Council Member Shupe stated that although he agrees that the cities need to be unified in the 64 

context of our costs and contracts, he wanted to make sure that there is no misconception. He 65 

stated that this is not a unified police department because a true unified police department is run 66 

by a board who hires the chief/administrator officers. 67 

Commissioner Bell stated that the County Commissioners subsidize half of Weber County law 68 

enforcement and elected that they need to have a Sheriff’s Office for Un-incorporated Weber 69 

County. He stated that he is comfortable having everyone in Weber County pay to help patrol the 70 

upper valley because many use the ski resorts, snow patrols, Pine View reservoir, campgrounds, 71 

and other areas. Commissioner Bell stated that Un-incorporated County issued a tax for the first 72 

time this year. He stated that they are also working on some statues as well. He also agreed with 73 

Council Member Shupe stating that this is not a metro or unified police. Council Member Brown 74 

asked when will the Un-incorporated be at $1.35 as they proposed. Commissioner Bell stated 75 

that they are proposed for $1.197 million. Commissioner Bell stated that they are off by around 76 

$240,000 and cannot answer the question posed by Council Member Brown. Commissioner Bell 77 

stated that for 2014 they are at $960,000 until their budget ends in December 2014. Council 78 

Member Brown asked if the Commissioner was promising that the 2014-2015 year will be 79 

proposed at the $1.197 million. Commissioner Bell stated that they are proposed just as everyone 80 

on the list. Commissioner Bell stated that for 2015 they are asking for $1.2 million, noting that 81 

he cannot give a definitive answer as to what might affect any changes to that proposal. He stated 82 

that the Commission approves the budget. 83 

Council Member Monsen stated that his main concern is that officers may be pulled from 84 

Washington Terrace if others cities do not have their full coverage. He stated that he is satisfied 85 

with the formula as long as it applies to everybody.  86 

Mayor Allen stated that it is important that the cities work together. Hanson stated that it is 87 

important to remember that there are incidences in our city that draw resources from other cities 88 

as well as other agencies. Lt. Burns stated that Washington Terrace City has never been left 89 



CC Minutes 02-04-14  

 

 

uncovered to help other cities. 90 

 91 
 92 

MAYOR, COUNCIL, AND STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT 93 
Mayor Mark C. Allen 94 

Council Member Mary Johnston 95 

Council Member Blair Brown 96 

Council Member Robert Jensen                  97 

Council Member Scott Monsen 98 

Council Member Val Shupe            99 

City Manager Tom Hanson 100 

City Recorder Amy Rodriguez 101 

Public Works Director Steve Harris 102 

City Treasurer Laura Gamon Puente 103 

City Attorney Bill Morris 104 

 105 

Others Present 106 
Charles Allen, Del Kraaima, T. R. Morgan 107 
 108 
2.     ROLL CALL                                                        6:00 P.M 109 

 110 

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 111 

 112 

4. WELCOME 113 

 114 

5.     CONSENT ITEMS 115 

 116 

5.1 APPROVAL OF AGENDA 117 

       5.2 APPROVAL OF JANUARY 21, 2014 MEETING MINUTES    118 
Items 5.1 and 5.2 were approved by general consent.   119 

 120 

       5.3 RE-APPOINTMENT OF CITY RECORDER AND CITY TREASURER 121 
Mayor Allen re-appointed Amy Rodriguez and Laura Gamon Puente as City Recorder and City 122 

Treasurer, respectively. 123 

 124 

Item 5.3 was approved by general consent. 125 

      126 

 6.     CITIZEN COMMENTS 127 
There were no citizen comments. 128 

 129 

 7.    COUNCIL/STAFF RESPONSE AND CONSIDERATION TO CITIZEN 130 

       COMMENTS 131 
 Due to lack of citizen comments in item 6, item 7 is unnecessary. 132 

 133 

 134 



CC Minutes 02-04-14  

 

 

 8.    NEW BUSINESS 135 

       8.1  MOTION: RE-APPOINTMENT OF WALLACE REYNOLDS AND DAN  136 

            JOHNSON TO SERVE AS PLANNING COMMISSIONERS 137 
Mayor Allen stated that he has elected to re-appoint Wallace Reynolds and Dan Johnson to serve 138 

as Planning Commissioners. 139 

Motion by Council Member Monsen 140 

Seconded by Council Member Johnston 141 

To re-appoint Wallace Reynolds and Dan Johnson 142 

To serve as Planning Commissioners 143 

Approved unanimously (5-0) 144 

 145 

       8.2  MOTION: RE-APPOINTMENT OF MAYOR MARK C. ALLEN TO  146 

            REPRESENT WASHINGTON TERRACE CITY AS BOARD MEMBER 147 

            ON THE CENTRAL WEBER SEWER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT BOARD  148 

            OF TRUSTEES 149 
Mayor Allen stated that he is required to re-appoint himself in accordance to the by-laws of the 150 

Central Weber Sewer Board after re-election. 151 

Motion by Council Member Johnston  152 

Seconded by Council Member Jensen 153 

To Re-appoint Mayor Mark C. Allen to 154 

Represent Washington Terrace City as Board Member on the 155 

Central Weber Sewer Improvement District 156 

Board of Trustees 157 

Approved unanimously (5-0) 158 

 159 

 160 

       8.3  MOTION:RE-APPOINTMENT OF COUNCIL MEMBER ROBERT JENSEN 161 

            TO REPRESENT WASHINGTON TERRACE CITY AS BOARD  162 

            MEMBER ON THE WEBER MOSQUITO ABATEMENT DISTRICT  163 

            BOARD OF TRUSTEES   164 
Mayor Allen stated that he would like to re-appoint Council Member Jensen as Board Member 165 

on the Weber Mosquito Abatement District. 166 

Council Member Jensen stated that he would like to have the opportunity to speak to Council at a 167 

later date to educate them on the work of the Weber Mosquito Abatement District.  168 

 169 

Motion by Council Member Johnston 170 

Seconded by Council Member Brown 171 

To re-appoint Council Member Robert Jensen to 172 

Represent Washington Terrace City as Board Member on the 173 

Weber Mosquito Abatement District 174 

Board of Trustees 175 

Approved unanimously (5-0) 176 

 177 

 178 

8.4  PRESENTATION: BUSINESS LICENSE DEPARTMENT UPDATE 179 



CC Minutes 02-04-14  

 

 

Rodriguez presented an update on the business license renewal season to Council. She presented 180 

a breakdown of current licenses by classification and updated Council on current trends in 181 

business licensing. 182 

  183 

8.5  MOTION/ORDINANCE 14-02: AMENDING CHAPTER 17.56 OF THE   184 

MUNICIPAL CODE RELATING TO CAMPAIGN SIGNS  185 
Hanson stated that the amendments were based on complaints that Council received from 186 

residents on the length of time that campaign signs were posted in the city during this past 187 

election. Attorney Bill Morris stated that there was a recent court case that restricted the ability 188 

to restrict the amount of time the signs can be posted and stated that he was concerned with the 189 

first amendment issue. He stated that the ordinance went through the Planning Commission 190 

because we are amending a chapter in the land use code. Morris stated that several of the 191 

Commissioners had concerns about the ordinance. Morris stated that we can limit time, place, 192 

and manner, but noted that there was an argument that by distinguishing between political and 193 

campaign signs we are becoming content non- neutral and may bring on additional problems. He 194 

noted that after the election the signs become litter and the city can have them removed. Morris 195 

stated that using the 2012 Johnson vs. Riverton case, the city may run into problems with the 30 196 

day rule. He stated that the Planning Commission recommended denying the ordinance by a 6-1 197 

vote. 198 

Council Member Monsen stated that he is in favor of not having signs up more than 30 days but 199 

is concerned on legal issues. He stated his concern that the city is opening itself up to trouble.  200 

He advised Council to listen to Morris’s recommendation on this issue because he is our legal 201 

counsel. Morris stated that Planning Commissioner Allen recommended changing wording in the 202 

ordinance to from “30 days shall” to “ 30 days may”, which would make it more of a 203 

gentlemen’s agreement. Council Member Monsen stated that an un-enforceable law is an 204 

un-needed law. Council Member Shupe noted that if we have the 30 day guidelines in place and 205 

someone would like to put their signs up earlier, there is nothing in the ordinance that says that 206 

they cannot put them up earlier if they push the first amendment issue. Morris agreed and stated 207 

that the ordinance would be very loosely applied if adopted. Morris noted that the many cities 208 

have not changed their ordinance to comply with the 2012 law. 209 

Council Member Brown stated that he feels that less is better and would support the 30 day 210 

guidelines. 211 

 212 

Motion by Council Member Shupe 213 

Seconded by Council Member Brown  214 

To Approve Ordinance 14-02 215 

Amending Chapter 17.56 of the Municipal Code  216 

relating to Campaign Signs 217 

Approved (3-2) 218 

Roll Call Vote  219 

Council Member Johnston – Nay 220 

Council Member Monsen- Nay 221 

Council Member Brown- Aye 222 

Council Member Jensen- Aye 223 

Council Member Shupe- Aye 224 



CC Minutes 02-04-14  

 

 

 225 

9.     COUNCIL COMMUNICATION WITH STAFF 226 
There were no Council Communication reports. 227 

 228 

10.      ADMINISTRATION REPORTS 229 
Hanson stated that law enforcement is listed in the budget as “Contract Services”. 230 

Hanson stated that the city is scoring high on the RAMP application for Rohmer Park bathroom 231 

renovations.    232 

 233 

11.     UPCOMING EVENTS      234 

        February 17th: City Offices closed for President’s Day 235 

        February 18th: City Council Meeting 6:00 p.m. 236 

        February 27th: Planning Commission Meeting 6:00 p.m. 237 

 238 

12. MOTION: ADJOURN INTO CLOSED SESSION   239 
Council adjourned into closed session to discuss: 240 

o Strategy session to discuss pending or reasonably imminent litigation 241 

 242 

Motion by Council Member Jensen 243 

Seconded by Council Member Shupe 244 

To adjourn into a closed session 245 

Approved unanimously (5-0) 246 

Roll Call Vote 247 

Time: 6:33 p.m. 248 

 249 

13. ADJOURN CLOSED SESSION AND RETURN TO REGULAR MEETING  250 

                                            Time: 6:54 p.m. 251 

 252 

13.1 MOTION: PROCEED TO SEND LEGACY HOUSE TO COLLECTIONS 253 

Motion by Council Member Shupe 254 

Seconded by Council Member Monsen 255 

To authorize the City Manager and City Attorney 256 

 To open negotiations with Legacy House with regards their 257 

Indebted payment to the city 258 

Approved (5-0) 259 

 260 

14.     ADJOURN THE MEETING: MAYOR ALLEN 261 
Mayor Allen adjourned the meeting at 6:55 p.m. 262 

        263 

 264 

____________________________________     ________________________________ 265 

Date Approved                                   City Recorder 266 

 267 

 268 

 269 



CC Minutes 02-04-14  

 

 

 270 

 271 


